
 

 

 
 

PUBLIC NOTICE AND AGENDA OF THE WEST BRANCH CITY COUNCIL 

MEETING SCHEDULED TO CONVENE AT 7:00 P.M. MONDAY NOVEMBER 5, 

2018 IN THE CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 110 NORTH POPLAR STREET, WEST 

BRANCH, IOWA. 
 
Mayor Roger Laughlin mayor@westbranchiowa.org 
Mayor Pro Tem Colton Miller mcolton@rocketmail.com 
Council Member Jordan Ellyson Jordanellyson@gmail.com 
Council Member Brian Pierce brianapierce@outlook.com 
Council Member Jodee Stoolman j.stoolmanwbcc@yahoo.com 
Council Member Nick Goodweiler nickgoodweilerwbcc@gmail.com 
City Administrator Redmond Jones II rjonesii@westbranchiowa.org 
City Attorney Kevin Olson kevinolsonlaw@gmail.com 
Deputy City Clerk Leslie Brick    leslie@westbranchiowa.org 

 
Please note:  Most written communications to or from government officials regarding government business 

are public records available to the public and media upon request.  Your e-mail communications may 

therefore be subject to public disclosure. 

 

AGENDA 

A. Call to Order 

 

B. Opening Ceremonies 
 

1. Pledge of Allegiance 
2. Welcome 

 

C. Roll Call 

 

D. Guest Speaker, Presentations and Proclamations  
 

1. 2018 Christmas Past (Update provided by Melissa Russell) – Christmas Past is 
an annual celebration that is a community driven festival organized by the 
Community Development Group and City of West Branch.  This year the event 
will be December 7th and December 8th.  The festival highlights include but are 
not limited to events such as: horse-drawn carriage rides, the Christmas Tree 
Gallery, Street-side Fireplaces and many other family friendly events.  
Attached is the draft schedule of events. 

 
E. Public Comment 

Anyone wishing to address the City Council may come forward when invited; please state your 

name and address for the record. Public comments are typically limited to three minutes, and 

written comments may be submitted to the Deputy City Clerk. Special instructions for public 

comments will be provided at the meeting if a public hearing or quasi-judicial matter is scheduled 

on the agenda. 

mailto:mayor@westbranchiowa.org
mailto:mcolton@rocketmail.com
mailto:Jordanellyson@gmail.com
mailto:brianapierce@outlook.com
mailto:j.stoolmanwbcc@yahoo.com
mailto:nickgoodweilerwbcc@gmail.com
mailto:rjonesii@westbranchiowa.org
mailto:kevinolsonlaw@gmail.com
mailto:leslie@westbranchiowa.org


 

 

F. Approve Agenda / Consent Agenda / Move to Action 
Routine items and items not anticipated to be controversial are placed on the Consent Agenda to 

expedite the meeting.  If a Council member, staff member or member of the Public wishes to discuss 

any item on the Consent Agenda, they can request the item be removed from the Consent Agenda 

for discussion.  The remaining items on the Consent Agenda will be voted on with one motion being 

made for all items on the Consent Agenda 
 

1. Motion to Approve Meeting Minutes for City Council Meeting October 15, 2018. 
2. Motion to Approve the Appointment of Jim Farmer as the Cedar County 

Representative the West Branch Library Board. 
3. Resolution 1755 – Hiring Nevin Tucker as a Water / Wastewater Operator for the 

City of West Branch, Iowa, and Setting the Salary for the Position for Fiscal Year 
2018-2019. 

4. Resolution 1754 – Approving West Branch Community School District High School 
Concession Stand Site Plan. 

5. Resolution 1760 – Approving the Contribution of $3,000 to the Community 
Development Group (CDG) for the Purpose of Horse Drawn Carriage Rides during the 
Christmas Past Festival. 

6. Motion to Approve the Claims Report. 
 

G. Public Hearing / Non-Consent Agenda 
 

1. Resolution 1756 – Authorizing the City Administrator to accept a $10,000 
“Money Back Guarantee” Wastewater Treatment Proposal from Baldridge 
Environmental, Inc. and an additional not to exceed amount of $4,000 for a 
city owned shed to house the wastewater treatment unit. 

2. Public Hearing: To dispose of real property known as “Outlot A” to Lynch 
Heights. 

3. Resolution 1757 – Selling property known as “Outlot A” to Lynch Heights. 
4. Public Hearing: Disposal of real property known as “Lot A of Lot 4, Rummells 

Commercial Subdivision, West Branch, Iowa”. 
5. Resolution 1758 – Approving the Disposal of Certain Real Property to Croell 

Redi-Mix, Inc.     
6. Motion to Set a Date for a Public Hearing: for the Notice of Rezoning 

requested by Cedar’s Edge Golf Course. 
7. Motion to Set a Date for a Public Hearing: for the Notice of Rezoning 

requested for Loethen Ridge Estates. 
8. Motion to Set a Date for a Public Hearing: for the Notice of Rezoning, 

requested by KLM for Meadows, Phase 4. 
9. Discussion Item: Regarding level of “Tax Rebate” support for Little Lights 

Project.   
10. Resolution 1759 – Amending Resolution 1461 to Adjust the Public 

Contribution by the Amount of an Additional $2,772 for public improvement 
in Meadows Sub-division.   

11. Discussion Item: Regarding authorizing $3,500 for the expense of design for an 
Electric Vehicle Charging Station.  



 

 

12. Resolution 1753 – Approving Little Lights Site Plan for Community / Event 
Center at Cedar’s Edge Golf Course.  

13. Resolution 1761 – Accepting the Proposal and Approving an Agreement with 

“Swift and Swift LLC.” for Nuisance Abatement Services Relating to 203 E. 

Green Street and other Properties as Deemed Appropriate.  
14. Resolution 1751 – Approving the Submission of the City of West Branch FY 

2017-2018 Annual Urban Renewal Report. 
15. Resolution 1752 – Obligating Funds from the Urban Renewal Tax Revenue Fund 

for the Payment of Annual Appropriation Tax Increment Financed Obligations 
in Fiscal Year 2020.   

16. Resolution 1750 – Authorizing an Internal Advance to the College Street and 
2nd Street Improvements Project Capital Fund. 

17. Resolution 1749 – A Consideration to Approve the Request of Casey’s 
Marketing Company to Rebate a Portion of Tax Increment Revenues. 

18. Resolution 1748 – Consider Approving the Request of Acciona Windpower 
North America, LLC to Rebate a Portion of Tax Increment Revenues. 

19. Resolution 1762 – Approving Partial Pay Estimate Number 7 in the Amount of 
$113,936.67 to Needham Excavating INC. for the Cubby Park Improvements 
Project 

20. Resolution 1763 – Approving Change Order #5 for a Date Extension for the 
Cubby Park Improvements Project. 

 
H. Reports 

 
1. City Administrator’s Report 
2. City Attorney Report 
3. Other Staff Hearsays 

 

I. Comments from Mayor and Council Members 

 

J. Adjournment 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

(The following is a synopsis of the minutes of the West Branch City Council meeting. A video recording is available for 

inspection on the City of West Branch Website at www.westbranchiowa.org/government/council-videos. The minutes are not 

approved until the next regularly scheduled City Council meeting.) 
 

West Branch, Iowa                                     City Council Meeting                               October 15, 2018  
Council Chambers                                                                7:00 p.m. 
  
Mayor Roger Laughlin called the West Branch City Council meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.  Mayor Laughlin then 

invited the Council, Staff and members of the audience to stand and led the group in the Pledge of Allegiance.   Roll 

call: Council members:  Colton Miller, Jordan Ellyson, Brian Pierce and Nick Goodweiler were present.  Jodee 

Stoolman was absent.  Laughlin welcomed the audience and the following City staff:  City Administrator Redmond 

Jones, Deputy City Clerk Leslie Brick, Finance Officer Gordon Edgar, Public Works Director Matt Goodale and 

Police Chief Mike Horihan. 

 

GUEST SPEAKER, PRESENTATIONS, AND PROCLAMATIONS 

Charlie Cegrand, USGS presented flood mitigation scenarios for the 8.42 mile Wapsinonoc watershed in West 

Branch.  Cegrand provided several options for mitigation which included potential upstream retention basins and a 

pinch point excavation area at an old railroad embankment that may help alleviate flooding along the creek.  

Cegrand said the overall goal is to slow the water down coming into town and getting it out as quickly as possible.   
 
Pete Swisher, Superintendent of the Herbert Hoover National Park gave an update on the Parks storm water 

mitigation plan.  Swisher explained the scope of the project, the necessary improvements and timeline for the 

project completion.  Swisher said construction is anticipated to begin next summer with completion in the fall of 

2020. 
 
Redmond Jones, City Administrator shared storm water mitigation ideas used in Davenport, Iowa and thought that 

West Branch could adopt some of their concepts. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

There was no public comment.   

 

APPROVE AGENDA/CONSENT AGENDA/MOVE TO ACTION 
Motion to approve City Council minutes from the October 15, 2018 meeting. 

Motion to Approve the Claims Report.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
          96,763.89   

(Minutes) 

 Consent Item 1 

http://www.westbranchiowa.org/government/council-videos


 

 

 
 

PUBLIC HEARING / NON-CONSENT AGENDA 

Discussion - potential extension for completion of the Cubby Park Improvement Project. 

Cody Buelt, Fehr Graham opened a discussion with the Council of the subject of extending the Cubby Park 

completion deadline.  Buelt said wet conditions is preventing the contractor to complete the project on time.  

Buelt was not able to give an expected completion date so the Council directed Buelt to have the contractor 

provide a list of items that can and cannot be completed for the Council to review.  The Council also asked 

the Buelt arrange for the contractor to present the list directly to the Council. 

 

Resolution 1746, approving the submission of the City of West Branch 2017-2018 Annual Finance Report 

to the State Auditor’s Office. / Move to action. 

Motion by Miller, second by Goodweiler to approve Resolution 1746.  AYES:  Miller, Goodweiler, 

Ellyson, Pierce.  NAYS:  None.  Absent:  Stoolman.  Motion carried.   

 

Discussion - seeking direction regarding the installment of a decal on the panels at the Cubby Park Pavilion. 

Laughlin passed a sample of the proposed panels with an adhesive design to show the Council how the internal 

structure of the concession stand would be shielded from view.  Laughlin asked for feedback on the design 

and said a decision would be needed soon as it is holding up the completion of other parts of the structure.  

The Council discussed and decided on a blank adhesive rather than a graphic that would still provide light, 

but hide the internal structure. 



 

 

CITY ADMINISTRATOR REPORT 

Jones reported the issue of cluster mailboxes has again resurfaced on Hilltop Drive.  Jones said he was in 

process of contacting the local post master to get information on cluster mailbox requirements.  He also 

advised the Council that a nuisance property in West Branch had reached the forty five (45) day check and 

little if any improvements have been made.  Jones said he has requested four quotes from various vendors to 

do the clean-up.  Jones said the clean-up will commence on or shortly after day sixty (60).  

 

CITY ATTORNEY REPORT 

No additional report. 

 

STAFF REPORTS  

No reports.   

 

COMMENTS FROM MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBER 

Laughlin reported that he had received a letter from the DNR on the Croell site and that no additional 

testing would be required. 

 

Miller asked why the City did not own the Croell site yet.  Olson responded that the Croell’s attorney had 

requested additional information.  Miller also asked when the Council goal setting session would be and 

requested that the Council consider flood mitigation be prioritized.  

 

ADJOURNMENT 

Motion to adjourn by Ellyson, second by Pierce.  Motion carried on a voice vote.  City Council meeting 

adjourned at 9:25 p.m.  

 

  

                             _________________________________________  

                                             Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

 

 

 

ATTEST: ______________________________________________ 

                   Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  November 5, 2018 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Motion to Approve the Appointment of Jim Farmer as the Cedar 

County Representative the West Branch Library Board. 

CITY GOAL: Promote quality of life including public safety, community pride 

events, strong citizen involvement, parks and recreation 

opportunities and investment. 

PREPARED BY: Nick Shimmin, West Branch Public Library Director 

DATE:  October 31, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  

Mr. Farmer has submitted an application to serve on the West Branch Public Library board 

of trustees.  He has been an active member of the community for many years and both he 

and his family have been frequent library users.   

 

There is a vacancy in the library board’s county representative seat previously held by 

Chuck Varnum who moved out of the area this spring due to occupational requirements.  

 

The expiration date for the seat will be June 30, 2019. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Motion – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

Consent Item 3 Consent Item 2 



 

 

 
 

 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  November 5, 2018 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1755 – Hiring Nevin Tucker as a Water / Wastewater 

Operator for the City of West Branch, Iowa and Setting the Salary 

for the Position for Fiscal Year 2018 – 2019.   

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the 

organization. 

PREPARED BY: Matt Goodale, Public Works Director 

DATE:  October 31, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  

This position would fill the vacancy left by James Holland’s resignation in mid-September. 

While this is a water and wastewater position the role of this employee will be the same as 

others in the Public Works Department, with the same responsibilities and job requirements.  

 

This position was listed for six weeks, with interviews on the 29th of October. We believe 

we have found the best candidate to fill this open position and look forward to having Nevin 

join our team. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Resolution – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Consent Item 3 Consent Item 3 



 

 

RESOLUTION 1755 

 

A RESOLUTION HIRING NEVIN TUCKER AS A WATER/WASTEWATER 

OPERATOR FOR THE CITY OF WEST BRANCH, IOWA, AND SETTING THE 

SALARY FOR THE POSITION FOR FISCAL YEAR 2018-2019.    

 

WHEREAS, the City of West Branch is interested in hiring Nevin Tucker as a 

water/wastewater operator. 

 

NOW, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of West Branch, Iowa: 

 

Section 1.  That the City of West Branch, Iowa will hire Nevin Tucker as a water/wastewater 

operator. 

 

Section 2.  The following person and position named shall be paid the hourly wage indicated 

and the City Clerk is authorized to issue warrants/checks, less legally required or authorized 

deductions for the amounts set out below, and make such contributions to IPERS and Social 

Security or other purposes as required by law or authorization of the Council: 

 
Position                    Name                      Wage              Basic   

                                                                                             Hours 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

Water/Wastewater Operator  Nevin Tucker  $19.50/hour 40/week 

 

 

SECTION 3.  The above named employee is subject to the City of West Branch Personnel 

Policies and Procedures applicable to their department. 

 

SECTION 4.  This resolution will be effective upon final passage of the City Council. 

 

Passed and Approved this 5th day of November, 2018. 

 

 

 

      ________________________________ 

      Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

________________________________ 

Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk   

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  November 5, 2018 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1754 – Approving West Branch Community School 

Concession Stand Site Plan. 

CITY GOAL: Develop, maintain and rebuild safe, clean, diverse, healthy, 

neighborhoods, including partnering with the school district. 

PREPARED BY: Deputy City Clerk Leslie Brick 

DATE:  October 29, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  

WBCSD Superintendent Marty Jimmerson and Brian Boelk, Axiom Consultants have 

presented a site plan to construct a new concession stand at the West Branch High School 

complex to City staff and City Engineer. (See Exhibit A) 

 

On October 16, 2018, the Planning & Zoning Commission approved a recommendation to 

the West Branch City Council for approval of the Site Plan. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve the Resolution – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

 

Consent Item 3 Consent Item 4 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 



 

 

 
 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

RESOLUTION 1754 

 
A RESOLUTION APPROVING WEST BRANCH COMMUNITY SCHOOL 

DISTRICT HIGHSCHOOL CONSESSION STAND SITE PLAN 
 

 

WHEREAS, the West Branch Community School District has heretofore submitted 

a proposed Site Plan to construct a concession stand at 900 West Main Street, West Branch, 

Iowa (the “Project”); and 

 

WHEREAS, said Site Plan (See Exhibit A) has heretofore been reviewed by City 

Staff, including the City Engineer; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Site Plan has been found to conform to West Branch Code of 

Ordinances; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of West Branch Planning and Zoning Commission has 

reviewed the Site Plan and recommended its approval to the West Branch City Council; and 

 

WHEREAS, it is now necessary for the City Council to approve said Site Plan. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, be it resolved by the City Council of 

the City of West Branch, Cedar County, Iowa, that the aforementioned Site Plan for the 

Project be and the same are hereby accepted and approved. 

 

 
* * * * * * * * 

Passed and approved this 5th day of November, 2018. 

 

 

       

  ______________________________ 

                                                          Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

____________________________________ 

 Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  November 5, 2018 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1760 – Approving the Contribution of $3,000 to the 

Community Development Group (CDG) for the Purpose of Horse 

Drawn Carriage Rides during the Christmas Past Festival.  

CITY GOAL: Promote quality of life including public safety, community pride 

events, strong citizen involvement, parks and recreation 

opportunities and investment. 

PREPARED BY: Melissa Russell, Parks and Recreation Director 

DATE:  October 31, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  

This item will meet one of City Council’s Moderate (4 votes) Objectives established at FY 

2017 – 2018 Goal Setting Session. 

 

Christmas Past is an annual celebration that is a community driven festival organized by the 

Community Development Group and City of West Branch.  This year the event will be 

December 7th and December 8th.  The festival highlights include but are not limited to events 

such as: horse-drawn carriage rides, the Christmas Tree Gallery, Street-side Fireplaces and 

many other family friendly events.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Resolution – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Consent Item 3 Consent Item 5 



 

 

RESOLUTION 1760 

 
APPROVING THE CONTRIBUTION OF $3,000 TO THE COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT GROUP (CDG) FOR THE PURPOSE OF HORSE DRAWN 

CARRIAGE RIDES DURING THE CHRISTMAS PAST FESTIVAL 

 

WHEREAS, the City of West Branch encourages tourist, residents from within and 

surrounding communities to bring the entire family to West Branch's annual celebration, 

celebrating the Spirit of the Season; and 

 

WHEREAS, the celebration kicks off Friday evening at 5 p.m. with caroling, a 

lighting ceremony, and the arrival of Santa and Mrs. Claus, and other special guests; and 

WHEREAS, the Main Street District, the Herbert Hoover National Historic Site, 

and the Herbert Hoover Presidential Library-Museum come alive with the sounds and 

activities of the season; and 

 

WHEREAS, visitors can warm themselves at one of many street-side fireplaces, 

roast a marshmallow, roast a hot dog or enjoy freshly made donut prepared in one of two 

open fire pits; and /or take a horse-drawn carriage ride to stop by and see the Gibson Train 

Display, where Mom and Dad can visit the Art Mart while the kids pay a visit to the North 

Pole Outlet; and    

WHEREAS, the West Branch City Council made it a City Council Goal financially 

contribute $3,000 to the Community Development Group (CDG) for the purpose of Horse 

Drawn Carriage Rides during the Christmas Past Festival. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, be it resolved by the City Council of 

the City of West Branch, Cedar County, Iowa, that the aforementioned payment $3,000 be 

made to the Community Development Group for the purposes so stated and hereby 

accepted and approved. 

 
* * * * * * * * 

Passed and approved this 5th day of November, 2018. 

 

       

  ______________________________ 

                                                          Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

____________________________________ 

 Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk 



 

 

 
 

 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  November 5, 2018 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Motion to Approve the Claims Report 

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the 

organization. 

PREPARED BY: Gordon Edgar, Finance Director 

DATE:  October 31, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  

These are routine expenditures that include such items as payroll, budget expenditures, and 

other financial items that relate to council approved items and/or other day to day 

operational disclosures. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Claims Report – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

 

Consent Item 3 Consent Item 6 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  November 5, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1756 – Authorizing the City Administrator to Accept a 

“$10,000 Money Back Guarantee” Wastewater Treatment Proposal 

from Baldridge Environmental, Inc.  and an additional not to exceed 

amount of $4,000 for the city owned shed to house the wastewater 

treatment unit.  

CITY GOAL: Develop inviting high profile visual impact projects; including 

gateways, establishing destination, branding and other projects that 

reflect tax results. 

PREPARED BY: Todd Baldridge / Randy Seberg, Baldridge Environmental Inc. 

DATE:  October 11, 2018 
     
BACKGROUND: 

The Wastewater Task Group recommends moving forward with this proposal.  The task 

group visited projects that used infusion technologies that enhances levels of dissolved 

oxygen for increased biological activity, the Baldridge process is 80% less expensive and 

comes with a money back guarantee.  The process will also results in enhanced sludge 

digestion by the enzymes (also known as “bugs). Again, a benefit for the city even if other 

levels are not met.  However, this sludge reduction through this process is also expected to 

result in lower levels of Ammonia, E.coli, and BODs. What are BOD’s - Biochemical 

Oxygen Demand or Biological Oxygen Demand, BOD are used extensively for wastewater 

treatment, in determining the decomposition rate of organic waste by microorganisms in the 

treatment process. In other words, BOD’s are the measurement of the amount of dissolved 

oxygen (DO) that is used by aerobic microorganisms when decomposing organic matter in 

water. BOD is an important water quality parameter because it provides an index to assess 

the effect discharged wastewater will have on the receiving environment (rivers, streams, 

and/or creeks).  If the rate of DO consumption by bacteria exceeds the supply of DO from 

aquatic plants, algae photosynthesis or diffusing from air, unfavorable conditions occur.  In 

short, even if the project doesn’t meet all of its expectation the wastewater will be better 

than when the project was started, and we will not lose time on our other timelines or DNR 

timeline obligations.  The money back guarantee projects confidence, but also lessens the 

city’s risk in trying to find cost effective service solutions. 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Seek City Council Direction 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:       

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 Non Consent Item 1 



 

 

 



 

 

RESOLUTION 1756 

 

AUTHORIZING THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR TO ACCEPT A “$10,000 

MONEY BACK GUARANTEE” WASTEWATER TREATMENT PROPOSAL 

FROM BALDRIDGE ENVIRONMENTAL, INC.  AND AN ADDITIONAL NOT 

TO EXCEED AMOUNT OF $4,000 FOR THE CITY OWNED SHED TO HOUSE 

THE WASTEWATER TREATMENT UNIT. 

 
 

WHEREAS, Early Mechanical Wastewater Treatment Plants are estimated at $5m 

to $7m dollars which would have impact on local sewer ratepayers. 

 

WHEREAS, The City of West Branch formed the Wastewater Task Group in order 

to explore cost effective measures to meet new DNR required levels; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Wastewater Task Group visited projects that used infusion 

technologies that enhances levels of dissolved oxygen for increased biological activity and 

therefore, recommends moving forward with this proposal as a pilot project; and 

 

WHEREAS, the proposal is a money back guarantee should in 6 months of 

operating the micro-bubble machine and adding their super charged enzymes, the discharge 

from the lagoon will comply to DNR standards; and 

 

WHEREAS, the fee for this project is $10,000 for installation and training plus 

$250.00 for each kilo of enzymes with a potential 40 kilo anticipated to be needed (enzyme 

cost will not be open to the “money back guarantee”; and a not to exceed amount of $4,000 

for a shed to house the treatment process; and 

 

WHEREAS, the total pilot project is anticipated not to exceed $24,000 (includes 

“money back” risk protection of $10,000; and potential city owned shed of $4,000 that can 

be used for other operational needs should project fail). 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, be it resolved by the City Council of 

the City of West Branch, Cedar County, Iowa, that the aforementioned Site Plan for the 

Project be and the same are hereby accepted and approved. 
 

 
* * * * * * * * 

Passed and approved this 5th day of November, 2018. 

      

   ______________________________ 

                                                          Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 
 
____________________________________ 

 Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk 



 

 

  
 
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  November 5, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Public Hearing: To consider intent and proposal of disposing of the 

City’s interest in Outlot “A”, Lynch Heights, West Branch, Iowa. 

CITY GOAL: Develop, maintain and rebuild safe, clean, diverse, healthy, 

neighborhoods, including partnering with the school district. 

PREPARED BY: Redmond Jones, City Administrator 

DATE:  October 11, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  
 
YOU ARE HEREBY NOTIFIED that a public hearing will be held by the City Council of 

the City of West Branch, at the Council Chambers at 110 Poplar Street, West Branch, Iowa, 

at 7:00 o'clock P.M., on Monday, November 5th, 2018.  Said public hearing shall be to 

consider the intent and proposal of disposing of the City's interest in Outlot A, Lynch 

Heights, West Branch, Iowa. 

 

 YOU ARE FURTHER NOTIFIED that the public is invited to make comment, 

either written or oral, at the time and place listed above.  Further information about this 

matter can be obtained by contacting the Office of the City Clerk.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Open Public Hearing / Close Public Hearing 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 2 



 

 

  

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  November 5, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1757 – Approving the Disposal of the City’s Interest in 

Outlot “A”, Lynch Heights Subdivision, West Branch, Iowa. 

CITY GOAL: Develop, maintain and rebuild safe, clean, diverse, healthy, 

neighborhoods, including partnering with the school district. 

PREPARED BY: Redmond Jones II, City Administrator 

DATE:  November 1, 2018  
     
BACKGROUND:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Click here to enter a date. 

Click here to enter text. 

Develop, maintain and rebuild safe, clean, diverse, healthy, neighborhoods, including 

partnering with the school district. 

Click here to enter text. 

November 15, 2017  

 Click here to enter text. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approve the Resolution – Move to Action 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

 Non Consent Item 3 

As West Branch continues to grow it has become a growing concern that the dedication 

of public park land or green space does not meet the needs of any comprehensive Parks, 

Recreation, and Open Space Master Plan.  In fact, in many cases this type land dedication 

has increased the burden on the City’s Public Works crews due to maintenance and other 

concerns.  Staff would like develop Land Dedication policy / code; which would allow 

the City Council the option to accept money as an alternative to the dedication of land, 

green space, or out lots. 

 

Accepting money as an alternative should be considered for any of the following 

conditions:  
 
a. Where there is no public park required by the Comprehensive Plan;  

b. If the developer does not wish to establish private parks; or  

c. Where the subdivision is too small to dedicate park sites sufficiently large enough to 

be economically operated. 

 

Special Note: 

There was some concern expressed by Mr. Maher; however based on advisement from 

the City Engineer and the City Attorney Mr. Maher’s concerns may be applicable to 

Outlot B rather than Outlot A; and even then these issues would typically be handled as 

a private negotiation or civil matter. 

 

See attached Memo. 



 

 

 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 

 

TO:  Kevin Olson, City Attorney 

  Dave Schechinger, City Engineer 

 

FROM: Redmond Jones II, City Administrator 

 

DATE:  October 31, 2018 

Hugh Maher (phone: 643-5984) property owner of 831 W. Main shown below came into 

my office today.  He inquired about a requirement that would disallow two property 

owners to share a single drive.  I told him I knew of no such requirement.  In fact, I knew 

of several incidences in the contrary.   

 
 

 

 

 

 

Mr. Maher who stands to lose driveway access to his property since the drive appears to 

be on someone else’s property (Lynch Plumbing Inc).  Mr. Maher claims that he is being 

told by the Lynch Plumbing that an easement agreement will not be allowed by the city.  I 

am of the belief that it would be allowable but would be between two private parties not 

involving the city.  Mr. Maher also thought that he would have some government 

protection to having land that he has been maintaining including black topping the drive 

(twice) being removed from his access.  He seemed to think that the city’s consideration 

for the sale and price of Outlot A, there should be a similar price or agreement available to 

Outlot 

A 

Property Owner: Hugh 

Maher 

Background on concern expressed 



 

 

keeping access to his property with ownership or an easement.  He asked if the city should 

require that to happen because of a perceived requirement by the city years ago (at least 

from his memory).  I did a cursory search and found no such code or documentation that 

would support his memory in this matter.   

Leslie informed me that Lynch Plumbing was told that if further development was to be 

considered south of their current development, it would require 60ft frontage on W. Main.  

Would that requirement prevent an easement agreement between Maher and Lynch? 

Please let me know your thoughts, any back ground, and it this has any direct or 

indirection connection to the sale of Outlot A. 

Thank you for your attention in this matter. 

 

Cc: City Council 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Responses to Memo 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Prepared by:  Kevin D. Olson, West Branch City Attorney, PO Box 5640, Coralville, Iowa 52241 (319)351-2277 

Return to:  City of West Branch, Iowa, 110 N. Poplar Street, West Branch, Iowa 52358 

Sent Tax Statements to: Lynch’s Plumbing, Inc., 115 S. 2nd Street, West Branch, Iowa 52358 

 

QUIT CLAIM DEED 
 

 For the consideration of One Dollar(s) and other valuable consideration, City of 

West Branch, Iowa, a municipal corporation, does hereby Quit Claim to Lynch’s 

Plumbing, Inc., an Iowa corporation, all our right, title, interest, estate, claim and demand 

in the following described real estate in CEDAR County, Iowa: 

 

Outlot A, Lynch Heights Subdivision, West Branch, Iowa, according to the plat 

thereof recorded in Book 1383 at Page 289, Records of the Cedar County 

Recorder’s Office. 

 

 

Exception:  428A.2(6). 

 

 

 Each of the undersigned hereby relinquishes all rights of dower, homestead and 

distributive share in and to the real estate. 

 Words and phrases herein, including acknowledgment hereof, shall be construed as 

in the singular or plural number, and as masculine or feminine gender, according to the 

context. 

 

Dated:  ______________________________ 

 

 

______________________________________ 

Roger Laughlin, Mayor  

       

         

     ATTEST: 

 

______________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator/Clerk  



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STATE OF IOWA               ) 

                                         )     ss 

COUNTY OF CEDAR )    

 

 On this ____ day of _________________, 2018, before me a Notary Public in and 

for said County, personally appeared Roger Laughlin and Redmond Jones II, to me 

personally known, who being duly swore that they are the Mayor and City Clerk, 

respectively of the City of West Branch, Iowa, a Municipal Corporation, created and 

existing under the laws of the State of Iowa, and that the seal affixed to the foregoing 

instrument is the seal of said Municipal Corporation, and that said instrument was signed 

and sealed on behalf of said Municipal Corporation by authority and resolution of its City 

Council and said Mayor and City Clerk acknowledged said instrument to be the free act 

and deed of said Municipal Corporation by it voluntarily executed. 

 

 

 

     ____________________________________                                                 

                                                    Notary Public 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

RESOLUTION 1757 

 

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE DISPOSAL OF THE CITY’S INTEREST IN OUTLOT 

A, LYNCH HEIGHTS SUBDIVISION, WEST BRANCH, IOWA. 

 

 WHEREAS, the City and Lynch’s Plumbing (the “Developer”), as developer of Lynch 

Heights Subdivision, West Branch, Iowa, previously entered into a Subdivider’s Agreement that 

was recorded in Book 1383 at Page 289, Records of the Cedar County Recorder’s Office (the 

“Agreement”); and 

 

 WHEREAS, as part of the Agreement, the Developer was required to construct a rain 

garden on Outlot A, Lynch Heights Subdivision, and convey said Outlot A to the City; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City has now agreed to disclaim the City’s right to take title to said 

Outlot A and relieve the Developer of the requirement to construct a rain garden on said Outlot A; 

and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Developer has agreed to pay the City the sum of $3,500.00 for the City’s 

disclaimer; and 

 

 WHEREAS, a public hearing following published notice of the same has been held on the 

City’s disposal of its rights to said Outlot A. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of West 

Branch, Cedar County, Iowa, that the disposal of all of the City’s rights outlined in the Agreement 

for Outlot A, Lynch Heights Subdivision, West Branch, Iowa, is hereby approved. Further, the 

Mayor and City Clerk are hereby directed, upon receipt of $3,500.00 from the Developer, to 

execute a Quit Claim Deed to evidence the City’s disposal of its rights in said Outlot A. 

 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Clerk is hereby directed to record this 

Resolution, the public hearing notice and the Quit Claim Deed in the Office of the Cedar County 

Recorder. 

 

   Passed and approved this 5th day of November, 2018. 

 

 

 

            

      ___________________________________ 

       Roger Laughlin, Mayor  

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator/Clerk 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 
 
 
 
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  November 5, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Public Hearing: To consider intent and proposal of disposing of real 

property known as Lot A of Lot 4, Rummells Commercial 

Subdivision, West Branch, Iowa 

CITY GOAL: Develop, maintain and rebuild safe, clean, diverse, healthy, 

neighborhoods, including partnering with the school district. 

PREPARED BY: Kevin Olson, City Attorney  

DATE:  November 1, 2018  
     
BACKGROUND:  
 
 
 NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
 
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON PROPOSAL DISPOSE OF AN INTEREST IN REAL 
PROPERTY, SAID REAL PROPERTY BEING GENERALLY REFERRED TO AS LOT A OF LOT 
4, RUMMELLS COMMERCIAL SUBDIVISION, WEST BRANCH, IOWA. 
  
 YOU ARE HEREBY NOTIFIED that a public hearing will be held by the City Council of the 
City of West Branch in the Council Chambers, at the City Hall at 110 Poplar Street, at 7:00 o'clock 
P.M., on Monday, November 5th, 2018.  Said public hearing shall be to consider the intent to dispose 
of the City's interest in Lot A of Lot 4, Rummells Commercial Subdivision, West Branch, Iowa to Croell 
Redi-Mix, Inc. 
 
 All interested persons are invited to attend and be heard on the proposal to dispose of the 
City's interest in the aforementioned property.  Further information on this matter may be obtained by 
contacting the West Branch City Clerk. 
 
 
                                                               
Redmond Jones II, City Clerk, 
by Direction of the City Council 

 

 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Open Public Hearing / Close Public Hearing 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

Non Consent Item 4 



 

 

  
 
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  November 5, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1758 – Approving the Disposal of Certain Property to 

Croell Redi-mix, Inc. 

CITY GOAL: Develop inviting high profile visual impact projects; including 

gateways, establishing destination, branding and other projects that 

reflect tax results. 

PREPARED BY: Kevin Olson, City Attorney 

DATE:  October 11, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  
 
The City and Croell Redi-Mix, Inc. (“Croell) previously entered into that certain Land 

Exchange Agreement; and as part of the Agreement, the City needs to convey Lot “A” of 

Lot 4, Rummells Commercial Subdivision, to Croell.  In exchange for the City’s 

conveyance to Croell, Croell will convey its present property adjacent to Main Street a.k.a. 

as the “Downtown East Redevelopment Project” to the City. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approve Motion – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 5 



 

 

RESOLUTION 1758 

 

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE DISPOSAL OF CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY 

TO CROELL REDI-MIX, INC. 

 

 WHEREAS, the City and Croell Redi-Mix, Inc., now known as Croell, Inc. 

(“Croell”) previously entered into that certain Land Exchange Agreement (the 

“Agreement”), said Agreement being recorded in Book 1329 at page 133, of the records of 

the Cedar County, Iowa, Recorder’s Office; and 

 

 WHEREAS, as part of the Agreement, the City will convey Lot A of Lot 4, 

Rummells Commercial Subdivision, West Branch, Iowa, to Croell, pursuant to the Plat of 

Survey recorded in Plat Book J at Page 212 of the records of the Cedar County, Iowa, 

Recorder’s office; and 

 

 WHEREAS, in exchange for the City’s conveyance to Croell, Croell will convey 

its present property adjacent to Main Street to the City, as set forth in the Agreement; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Chapter 364 of the Code of Iowa and the Title Standards of the Iowa 

State Bar Association require a public hearing be held prior to a city conveying property; 

and 

 

 WHEREAS, said public hearing has been held pursuant to the published notice of 

the same. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of 

West Branch, Cedar County, Iowa, that the conveyance of said Lot A of Lot 4, Rummells 

Commercial Subdivision to Croell pursuant to the Agreement is hereby approved and the 

proposed deed of conveyance to Croell is hereby approved and the Mayor of the City of 

West Branch is hereby authorized to execute and deliver said deed to Croell.  Further, the 

City Clerk is directed to record a copy of this Resolution, along with the affidavit of 

publication, in the Office of the Cedar County Recorder’s Office. 

 

   Passed and approved this 5th day of November, 2018. 

 

 

 

      ________________________________ 

      Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

____________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator/Clerk 

 

 



 

 

  
 
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  November 5, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Motion to Set a Public Hearing: for the Notice of Rezoning 

requested by Cedar’s Edge Golf Course. 

CITY GOAL: Develop inviting high profile visual impact projects; including 

gateways, establishing destination, branding and other projects that 

reflect tax results. 

PREPARED BY: Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk 

DATE:  November 1, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  
 
Jerry Sexton, owner of Cedar’s Edge Golf Course has requested that a portion of the golf 

course be rezoned from A-1 to R-1 and R-2.  The new subdivision will have 16 R-1 lots and 

9 R-2 lots.  The Planning & Zoning Commission held a Public Hearing on October 16, 2018 

and approved a recommendation to the City Council hearing no objections from residents, 

staff or commission members.  Planning & Zoning also approved the Preliminary Plat for 

this new subdivision. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Set date for Public Hearing for November 19, 2018 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        
 
 

Non Consent Item 6 



 

 

 

  
 
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  November 5, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Motion to Set a Public Hearing: for the Notice of Rezoning 

requested by Loethen Ridge Estates. 

CITY GOAL: Develop inviting high profile visual impact projects; including 

gateways, establishing destination, branding and other projects that 

reflect tax results. 

PREPARED BY: Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk 

DATE:  October 29, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  
 
IWB, LLC has purchased approximately 8.6 acres (formerly known as Pedersen Valley, 

Part 4), now Loethen Ridge Estates and has requested that it be rezoned from R-1 to R-2.   

The Planning & Zoning Commission held a Public Hearing on October 16, 2018 and 

approved a recommendation to the City Council hearing no objections from residents, staff 

or commission members.  Planning & Zoning also approved the Preliminary Plat for this 

new subdivision. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Set date for Public Hearing for November 19, 2018 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:       

Non Consent Item 7 



 

 

  
 
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  November 5, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Motion to Set a Public Hearing: for the Notice of Rezoning 

requested by KLM for the Meadows, Part 4. 

CITY GOAL: Develop inviting high profile visual impact projects; including 

gateways, establishing destination, branding and other projects that 

reflect tax results. 

PREPARED BY: Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk 

DATE:  November 1, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  
 
KLM Investments has requested that 18 lots be rezoned from R-1 to R-2 in The Meadows, 

Part 4 subdivision.  The Planning & Zoning Commission held a Public Hearing on October 

16, 2018 and approved a recommendation to the City Council hearing no objections from 

residents, staff or commission members. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Set date for Public Hearing for November 19, 2018 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        
 
 

Non Consent Item 8 



 

 

  
 
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  November 5, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Discussion Item: Regarding the Level of “Tax Rebate” Support for 

the Little Light Project. 

CITY GOAL: Develop, maintain and rebuild safe, clean, diverse, healthy, 

neighborhoods, including partnering with the school district. 

PREPARED BY: Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

DATE:  November 1, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  
 
Whereas, the City of West Branch as one of its City Goals “Developing Inviting High 

Profile Visually Impactful Projects: Including Projects that Establish West Branch as a 

Destination; Involving Branding and Other Projects that Reflect Sound Use of Tax 

Dollars.   
 
Additionally, the City seeks to promote the public interest of assisting business interest 

grow employment opportunities, and industry productivity with its city limits.  Our efforts 

with developing MOU and working with Little Lights a local business has been successful 

in assisting Little Light with gaining commitment from Cedar Rapids Bank and Trust.  As 

we move forward with the next steps of establishing a Development Agreement and for 

purposes calculating the project appraisal (needed for financing) the level of Tax Rebate is 

important to firm up. 
 
Although, Little Light’s Events and Cedar’s Edge Golf Course will still be working 

closely, they no longer have a joint project.  Instead they will have separate facilities in 

close proximity.  The Little Lights Facility is currently budgeted at $1.5 million.  A 

project at that scale would involve percentages and dollar amounts as follows:  
 

7% - 
$105,000 

8% - 
$120,000 

9% - 
$135,000 

10% - 
$150,000 

11% - 
$165,000 

12% - 
$180,000 

13% - 
$195,000 

14% - 
$210,000 

15% - 
$225,000 

16% - 
$240,000 

17% - 
$255,000 

18% - 
$270,000 

19% - 
$285,000 

20% - 
$300,000 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Seek Direction 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

Non Consent Item 9 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   
 
 



 

 

 
 

 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  November 5, 2018 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1759 – Amending Resolution 1461 to Adjust the Public 

Contribution by the Amount of an Additional $2,772 for public 

improvement in Meadows Sub-division. 

CITY GOAL: Develop, maintain and rebuild safe, clean, diverse, healthy, 

neighborhoods, including partnering with the school district. 

PREPARED BY: Redmond Jones II, City Administrator 

DATE:  November 1, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  

As part of the subdivision agreement in Resolution 1461, KLM was to replace the storm 

water intake and two concrete panels located at the (then) end of Sullivan Street.  The City 

agreed to reimburse the Subdivider (KLM) the sum of not-to-exceed $12,835.00 which was 

based upon city engineer estimates and actual invoices.  The improvements actually came 

in $2,772.00 over the $12,835.00 originally approved. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve the Resolution – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Consent Item 3  Non Consent Item 10 



 

 

 

RESOLUTION 1759 

 

AMENDING RESOLUTION 1461 TO ADJUST THE PUBLIC CONTRIBUTION 

BY THE AMOUNT OF AN ADDITIONAL $2,772 FOR PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT 

IN MEADOWS SUB-DIVISION 

 
WHEREAS, KLM Investments, Inc.(“KLM”), is the owner of real estate generally 

referred to as the Meadows Subdivision; and 

 

WHEREAS, KLM as part of the subdivision agreement in Resolution 1461, was to 

replace the storm water intake and two concrete panels located at the (then) end of Sullivan 

Street; and 

 

WHEREAS, In Resolution 1461, the City of West Branch agreed to reimburse the 

Subdivider (KLM) the sum of (not-to-exceed) $12,835.00 which was based upon city 

engineer estimates and actual invoices; and   
 

WHEREAS, the final expenses related to the agreed upon public improvement were $2,772 

more than were originally budgeted amount of $12,835.00; and KLM has requested the City 

Council consider amending their earlier agreement. 
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of West 

Branch, Iowa, that the aforementioned resolution 1461 be amended to reflect an adjustment of an 

additional $2,772.00 for public improvements in the Meadows Sub-division has been formally 

approved. 

 

Passed and approved this 5th day of November, 2018. 

 

 

 

 

      _________________________________ 

      Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Redmond Jones, City Administrator/Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 



 

 

  
 
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  November 5, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Discussion Item: Regarding Authorizing $3,500 for the Expense of 

Design for an Electric Vehicle Charging Station. 

CITY GOAL: Develop inviting high profile visual impact projects; including 

gateways, establishing destination, branding and other projects that 

reflect tax results. 

PREPARED BY: Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

DATE:  November 1, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  
 
In 2017 over 2 million Electric Vehicles (EVs) were driving worldwide.  By 2020 over 

103 new EV models will be available on the market from all of the major car producers – 

Nissan, Renault, BMW, Mercedes, Ford, General Motors, Volkswagen, and more.  In 

addition, prices continue to drop while distance range of these vehicles continue to 

increase.  Bloomberg New Energy Finance predicts that before 2040 sales of EVs will 

overtake combustion engine vehicles.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Seek Direction 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 
 

Non Consent Item 11 



 

 

  
 
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  November 5, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution1753 – Approving Little Lights Site Plan for a 

Community / Event Center at Cedar’s Edge Golf Course. 

CITY GOAL: Develop inviting high profile visual impact projects; including 

gateways, establishing destination, branding and other projects that 

reflect tax results. 

PREPARED BY: Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk 

DATE:  October 29, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  
 
Erin Morrison-Vincent, owner of Little Lights on the Lane has submitted a revised site plan 

for an event center to be located at the Cedar’s Edge Golf Course.  Due to financial 

constraints, the event center will now be a stand-alone building constructed in the A-1 

District, separate from the Cedar’s Edge Golf Course club house.  Morrison-Vincent will 

be purchasing a parcel of land from Jerry Sexton within the golf course for the event center. 

 

Staff determined from the West Branch Code of Ordinances, Chapter 165.26(1), that event 

centers were not listed as a permitted use for the A-1 District and advised Morrision-Vincent 

that a Special Exception was required from the Zoning Board of Adjustment in order for 

this site plan to be approved.   

 

On October 16, 2018, the Planning & Zoning Commission approved a recommendation to 

the City Council contingent upon approval from the Zoning Board of Adjustment for a 

Special Exception to allow the construction of the event center. 

 

The Zoning Board of Adjustment held a meeting on October 23, 2018 and approved the 

Special Exception (with conditions) - see attached.   

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve the Resolution – Move to Action 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 12 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 



 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 



 

 

 
 

 
 

 



 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

RESOLUTION 1753 

 
 
A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE REVISED LITTLE LIGHTS ON THE LANE 

EVENT CENTER SITE PLAN – (REPLACES RESOLUTION 1733) 

 

 

WHEREAS, the owner(s) of Little Lights on the Lane has heretofore submitted a 

revised Site Plan to construct an event center facility at Cedar’s Edge Golf Course, 19 

Greenview Lane, Lot 26, in the City of West Branch, Iowa (the “Project”); and 

 

WHEREAS, said Site Plan (See Exhibit A) has heretofore been reviewed by City 

Staff, including the City Engineer; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Site Plan has been found to conform to West Branch Code of 

Ordinances; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of West Branch Planning and Zoning Commission has 

reviewed the Site Plan and recommended its approval to the West Branch City Council; and 

WHEREAS, the City of West Branch Zoning Board of Adjustment has viewed the 

Site Plan and approved a Special Exception (Exhibit B) and recommended its approval to 

the West Branch City Council; and  

 

WHEREAS, it is now necessary for the City Council to approve said Site Plan. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, be it resolved by the City Council of 

the City of West Branch, Cedar County, Iowa, that the aforementioned Site Plan for the 

Project be and the same are hereby accepted and approved. 

 
* * * * * * * * 

Passed and approved this 5th day of November, 2018. 

   

 

       

______________________________ 

                                                         Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk  

 

 

 



 

 

  
 
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  November 5, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution1761 – Accepting the Proposal and Approving an 

Agreement with “Swift and Swift LLC.” for Nuisance Abatement 

Services Relating to 203 E. Green Street and other Properties as 

Deemed Appropriate.  

CITY GOAL: Develop inviting high profile visual impact projects; including 

gateways, establishing destination, branding and other projects that 

reflect tax results. 

PREPARED BY: Redmond Jones II, City Administrator 

DATE:  November 1, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  
 
This is the first step in addressing the City Council’s Goal Setting Objective to develop a 

Nuisance Abatement Program.  Having a contractor (on a preference list) who can provide 

clean up services will give a clear line for clean-up cost which will billed to the land 

owner or potentially lien against the property.   

 

Swift & Swift LLC was the lowest proposal presented and represents a reasonable labor 

hourly cost that could legally be defended should court proceeding be necessary.  

Originally, my conversations with Swift and Swift included a not to exceed $3,750 

($2,250 lower than the next closest proposal); however now, that the homeowner has done 

some cleanup work the remaining contracted clean-up would be less than our originally 

cost estimates.  Swift & Swift are willing to work with the city to determine agreed upon 

hour caps per case to case scenario. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve the Resolution – Move to Action 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 13 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

RESOLUTION 1761 
 

ACCEPTING THE PROPOSAL AND APPROVING AN AGREEMENT WITH 

“SWIFT AND SWIFT LLC.” FOR NUISANCE ABATEMENT SERVICES 

RELATING TO 203 E. GREEN STREET AND OTHER PROPERTIES AS 

DEEMED APPROPRIATE 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of West Branch, Iowa, has heretofore 

deemed it necessary and desirable to have a clean city, and therefore should have Nuisance 

Abatement Program that addresses the cleanliness of the city; and  

 

WHEREAS, the City Council made improving the City’s Nuisance Abatement 

Program a High Priority; and 

 

WHEREAS, Having a contractor (on a preference list) who can provide clean-up 

services will give a clear line for clean-up cost which will billed to the land owner or 

potentially lien against the property; and 

 

WHEREAS, Swift & Swift LLC was the lowest proposal presented and represents 

a reasonable $29.00 labor hour cost that could legally be defended should court proceeding 

be necessary; and 

 

WHEREAS, Swift & Swift will to work with the city to determine agreed upon 

hour caps per case to case scenario.; and  

 

WHEREAS, in the most egregious cases (like 203 E. Green Street) a cap of 100 

($2,900) labor hours exist and the City always reserve the right to use in-house services 

when it deems appropriate. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, be it resolved by the City Council of 

the City of West Branch, Cedar County, Iowa, that the aforementioned agreement be 

accepted and approved. 

 
* * * * * * * * 

Passed and approved this 5th day of November, 2018. 

   

       

______________________________ 

                                                         Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk  



 

 

  
 
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  November 5, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution1751 – Approving the Submission of the City of West 

Branch FY 2017 - 2018 Annual Urban Renewal Report.  

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the 

organization. 

PREPARED BY: Gordon Edgar, Finance Director 

DATE:  November 2, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  
 
The State of Iowa requires that each city which has adopted an Urban Renewal Area 

prepare an Annual Urban Renewal Report and submit the report to the Iowa Department 

of Management. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve the Resolution – Move to Action 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 14 



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

  
 
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  November 5, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution1752 – Obligating Funds from the Urban Renewal Tax 

Revenue Fund for the Payment of Annual Appropriation Tax 

Increment Financed Obligations in Fiscal Year 2020.  

CITY GOAL: Develop inviting high profile visual impact projects; including 

gateways, establishing destination, branding and other projects that 

reflect tax results. 

PREPARED BY: Gordon Edgar, Finance Director 

DATE:  November 2, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  
 
The City of West Branch, Iowa has adopted an Urban Renewal Plan that created a tax 

increment district as authorized by Chapter 403, State Code of Iowa and allowed for the 

creation of a special fund to pay for expenses related to the Urban Renewal Plan.  This 

document allows a municipality to incur indebtedness as it relates to the Urban Renewal 

Plan and requires a municipality to certify to the county auditor by December 1, the 

amount of indebtedness payable from the special fund of the municipality. This 

indebtedness is summarized on the attached certification form. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve the Resolution – Move to Action 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 15 



 

 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 
 

 

 



 

 

 

RESOLUTION 1752 

 

A RESOLUTION OBLIGATING FUNDS FROM THE URBAN RENEWAL TAX 

REVENUE FUND FOR THE PAYMENT OF ANNUAL APPROPRIATION TAX 

INCREMENT FINANCED OBLIGATION IN FISCAL YEAR 2020 

 

 

 
 

* * * * * * 
 

PASSED, ADOPTED AND APPROVED this 5th day of November, 2018 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

  
 
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  November 5, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution1750 – A Resolution authorizing an internal advance to 

the College Street and 2nd Street Improvements Project Capital Fund. 

CITY GOAL: Develop inviting high profile visual impact projects; including 

gateways, establishing destination, branding and other projects that 

reflect tax results. 

PREPARED BY: Gordon R. Edgar, Finance Director 

DATE:  November 1, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  
 
This will provide a portion of the funding for this project and will be included in the debt 

certification report due on December 1. 

 

As a result of the Redesign process that was City Council approved shortly after the public 

feedback portion of the planning and engineering phase of the College Street Project.  

Additional project expenses are anticipated.  In attempt to meet these needs and not 

jeopardize the $1 million Department of Transportation matching grant funding an 

extension was requested and granted.  This allowed project coordinators to address right-

of-way issues and to take advantage of Urban Renewal Process to assist with funding for 

this project.   

 

As planed this approach has helped the project; however, since the project has yet to go 

out for bid at this time it has been advised (by the City’s Finance Consultant) to only make 

a small advance in the project fund at this time.  This will allow the biding process to 

establish our funding strategy. 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve the Resolution – Move to Action 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 16 



 

 

RESOLUTION1750 

 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AN INTERNAL ADVANCE TO THE 

COLLEGE STREET AND 2ND STREET IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT CAPITAL 

FUND 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of West Branch, Iowa, has undertaken 

and approved the College Street and 2nd Street Improvements Project and the City has 

incurred certain engineering fees and construction cost (the “Project Cost”) in connection 

with the planning and construction of the Project; and   

 

WHEREAS, in order to make provision for the payment of the Project Cost, it is 

necessary to facilitate an internal advance of funds and to facilitate the repayment of said 

advance from future bond proceeds; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the City Council of the City of West 

Branch, Cedar County, Iowa, as follows: 

 

Section 1. It is directed that an amount not to exceed One Hundred Thousand 

Dollars ($100,000.00) be advanced from the General Fund (the “Advance”) in order to 

fund the Project Costs.  The Advance shall be repaid to the General Fund without interest, 

out of incremental property tax revenues received with respect to the Urban Renewal 

Area.  It is intended that the Advance shall be repaid in two (2) annual installments of 

$50,000.00 each, on or before July 1 2020 and July 1, 2021.   

 

Section 2. All resolutions or parts thereof in conflict herewith, are hereby 

repealed, to the extent of such conflict. 

 
* * * * * * * * 

Passed and approved this 5th day of November, 2018. 

   

       

______________________________ 

                                                         Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk  

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

  
 
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  November 5, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution1749 – A Consideration to Approve the Request of 

Casey’s Marketing Company to Rebate a Portion of Tax Increment 

Revenues.  

CITY GOAL: Promote quality of life including public safety, community pride 

events, strong citizen involvement, parks and recreation 

opportunities and investment. 

PREPARED BY: Gordon Edgar. Finance Director 

DATE:  November 2, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  
 
Resolution accepting the terms of a City Council approved Development Agreement. 

 

There has been extensive conversation regarding the standing of our contract with Casey’s 

and if Casey are in violation of their contractual obligation.  In an attempt to work with 

Casey in this regard a letter was sent to their corporate offices. 

 

In response Casey’s indicated an interest providing land to the city at no cost.  

Considering the success of development project that was incentivized and the proposal to 

have land donated to the city.  There is thought to continue with the previous contract 

(despite potential claims of breach) and honor the city’s obligations.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Seek Direction – Move to Action 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 17 



 

 

RESOLUTION 1749 

 

A CONSIDERATION TO APPROVE THE REQUEST OF CASEY’S 

MARKETING COMPANY TO REBATE A PORTION OF TAX INCREMENT 

REVENUES 

 

 
 

 *  *  *  * 

 

Passed and approved this 5th day of November, 2018. 

 

 

       

  ______________________________ 

                                                         Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk  

 

 



 

 

  
 
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  November 5, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution1748 – Consider Approving the Request of Acciona 

Windpower of North America, LLC to Rebate a Portion of Tax 

Increment Revenues.  

CITY GOAL: Develop inviting high profile visual impact projects; including 

gateways, establishing destination, branding and other projects that 

reflect tax results. 

PREPARED BY: Redmond Jones II, City Administrator 

DATE:  November 1, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve the Resolution – Move to Action 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 18 



 

 

RESOLUTION 1748 

 

CONSIDER APPROVING THE REQUEST OF ACCIONA WINDPOWER OF 

NORTH AMERICA, LLC TO REBATE A PORTION OF TAX INCREMENT 

REVENUES 

 

 
 

Passed and approved this 5th day of November, 2018. 

 

 

       

  ______________________________ 

                                                         Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk  



 

 

  
 
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  November 5, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution1762 - Approving Partial Pay Estimate Number 7 in the 

Amount of $113,936.67 to Needham Excavating INC. for the Cubby 

Park Improvements Project.  

CITY GOAL: Develop inviting high profile visual impact projects; including 

gateways, establishing destination, branding and other projects that 

reflect tax results. 

PREPARED BY: Nate Kass, Fehr Graham 

DATE:  November 1, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  
 
This is pay estimate number 7 in the Amount of $113,936.67 to Needham Excavating 

INC. for the Cubby Park Improvements Project 

 

Listed below are the pay estimates paid out to date: 

 

Partial Pay Estimate Number One (1) in the amount of $276,843.04 

Partial Pay Estimate Number Two (2) in the amount of $362,865.81 

Partial Pay Estimate Number Three (3) in the amount of $247,973.87 

Partial Pay Estimate Number Four (4) in the amount of $221,684.85 

Partial Pay Estimate Number Five (5) in the amount of $189,204.44 

Partial Pay Estimate Number Six (6) in the amount of $604,543.90  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve the Resolution – Move to Action 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

 

Non Consent Item 19 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

RESOLUTION 1762 

 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING PARTIAL PAY ESTIMATE NUMBER 7 IN THE 

AMOUNT OF $113,936.67 TO NEEDHAM EXCAVATING INC. FOR THE 

CUBBY PARK IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT. 

 

WHEREAS, Needham Excavating Inc. of Walcott, Iowa was awarded the 

construction contract for Cubby Park Improvements for West Branch, Iowa (the “Project”) 

by the West Branch City Council through the passage of Resolution 1680 on January 16, 

2018 in the amount of $2,945,427.39; and 
 

WHEREAS, Needham Excavating has declared that said project has started and 

work has been rendered in accordance with drawings and specifications on the Project, 

based on observations West Branch project managers and the project managers of Fehr 

Graham who are contracted with the City of West Branch to oversee the construction 

process. 
 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of West Branch, approved Partial Pay Estimate 

Number One (1) through Six (6) in the amount of $1,903,115.91 to Needham Excavating 

Inc. of Walcott, Iowa to date; and 
 

WHEREAS, it is now necessary to for the City Council to accept and approve the 

Pay Estimate Number Seven (7) in the amount of $113,936.67 and the project is now 

approximately 73.49% complete. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of West Branch, 

that Partial Pay Estimate Number Seven in the amount of $113,936.67 to Needham 

Excavating Inc. of Walcott, IA is approved. 

 

*  *  *  *  *  * 
 

Passed and approved this 5th day of November, 2018. 

 
 
 

      ______________________________ 

      Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 
 
ATTEST:  
 
_________________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator / City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

  
 
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  November 5, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1763 - Approving Change Order #5 for a Date Extension 

for the Cubby Park Improvements Project.  

CITY GOAL: Develop inviting high profile visual impact projects; including 

gateways, establishing destination, branding and other projects that 

reflect tax results. 

PREPARED BY: Nate Kass, Fehr Graham 

DATE:  November 1, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  
 
This change order for work at Cubby Park covers the completion date extension discussed 

at the October 15 council meeting. The contractor has since then repaired damaged subbase, 

started paving, and began spreading the remaining top soil where possible. However, work 

is still behind schedule due to unfavorable weather conditions discussed previously. To 

guarantee work, the contractor requests that the following temperature-sensitive items wait 

to be completed until spring: permanent seeding, tree plantings, pavement markings, and 

Pickle-ball court surfacing. All work excluding these items is to be completed no later than 

December 22, 2018. Seeding, planting, and pavement markings shall be complete by March 

30, 2019 in order to open the park for ball field use by April 13, 2019. For the placement of 

the Pickle-ball court surface, the temperature must remain above 45oF for two consecutive 

days. Therefore, the court completion date shall be May 24, 2019 to provide proper 

overnight temperature. It is not anticipated that this change order will cause a change in 

project cost. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve the Resolution – Move to Action 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 20 



 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 


